
Meeting contact Dianne Scambler or email dscambler@southribble.gov.uk

LICENSING PANEL
WEDNESDAY, 19TH DECEMBER, 2018, 10.00 AM

PADDOCK ROOM, CIVIC CENTRE, WEST PADDOCK, LEYLAND 
PR25

AGENDA

1 Apologies for absence

2 Declarations of Interests

Members are requested to indicate at this stage in the 
proceedings any items on the agenda in which they intend to 
declare an interest. Members are reminded that if the interest 
is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the 
Members’ Code of Conduct) they must leave the room for the 
whole of that item. If the interest is not a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, but is such that a member of the public 
could reasonably regard it as being so significant that it is 
likely that it would prejudice their judgment of the public 
interest (as explained in the Code of Conduct) then they may 
make representations, but then must leave the meeting for 
the remainder of the item.

3 Declaration of New Premises Licence Application (Pages 3 - 72)

Report of the Legal Services Manager attached. 

Heather McManus
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Licensing Panel

The minutes of this meeting will be available on the internet at 
www.southribble.gov.uk

Forthcoming Meetings
Time Not Specified Date Not Specified - 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southribble.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO ON

Licensing Panel 19 December 2018

TITLE REPORT OF
Determination of New Premises Licence Application - Indigo, 1a 
Fleetwood Street, Leyland Legal Services Manager

Is this report confidential? No

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

To provide an overview of the application and inform Members of the relevant parts of statute 
and guidance relating to this application.

2   CORPORATE PRIORITIES

The report relates to the following corporate priorities:

Excellence and Financial Sustainability

Health and Wellbeing x

Place x

Projects relating to People in the Corporate Plan:

People 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to:

3.1  note the content of the report; and
3.2  determine whether to grant or reject the application. If members grant the application, they are 

asked to consider whether any additional conditions or restrictions should apply (taking into 
account any representations that have been made). 

4.   BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

4.1 An application was submitted on 31st October 2018 by Daniel Hindle for a new Premises 
Licence pursuant to Section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for a first floor premises, formally the 
Knights of St Columbus, 1a Fleetwood Street, PR253NL. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2

4.2 The Applicant seeks permission to sell alcohol by retail between the hours of 11.00hrs till 
00.00hrs Sun- Thurs and 11.00hrs -02.00hrs on Fridays and Saturdays.

4.3 In addition, the applicant seeks permission: 

To offer recorded music between the hours of 19.00hrs and 00.15 Sun- Thurs and 19.00hrs – 
02.15 on Fridays and Saturdays.

The proposed opening hours of the premises are 11.00hrs till 00.30hrs Sun-Thurs and 
11.00hrs -02.30hrs on Fridays and Saturdays.

4.4 The premises is currently licensed for the supply of alcohol, the supply is subject to terms of 
the Club Premises Certificate. Bona fide clubs should be run for the benefit of the members 
and the only additional customers permitted in a club are guests of the members. The current 
hours of the CPC are 11.00hrs midnight through the week and 11.00hrs 01.00hrs at the 
weekend.

5. REPRESENTATIONS FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

5.1  There have been three representations received by responsible authorities in respect of the 
application. The representations have been received from the Council’s Environmental Health 
Section, the Licensing Authority and the Police, the representations are attached as 
Appendices A, B and C  respectively. 

5.2  The representation relate to concerns over noise nusiance and crime and disorder which fall  
under the licensing objectives 

6.    REPRESENTATIONS FROM OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES   

6.1 There have been 12 representations received from other parties. They have raised issues in 
respect of licensing objectives relating to the Prevention of Harm to Children, the Prevention of 
Public Nuisance, the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, and Public Safety.  Please see 
attached representations (Appendices D-O). 

7.    DECISION TO BE MADE BY THE LICENSING ACT PANEL 

       Determination of application under section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 7.1 Section 18 
of the Licensing Act 2003 sets out the steps that can be taken, which are; To grant the licence 
subject to any conditions the Licensing Authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives. To exclude from the scope of the licence any licensable activities to which 
the application relates To refuse to specify a person in the licence the premises supervisor; or 

To reject the application A licensing authority must carry out its functions under the Act 
(licensing functions) with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. In carrying out its 
functions, a licensing authority must have also have regard to- Its own statement policy published 
under section 5, and Any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 
182. Relevant paragraphs of the Section 182 guidance are found below;
“9.3 Where a representation concerning the licensing objectives is made by a responsible 
authority about a proposed operating schedule and it is relevant (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 
below), the licensing authority’s discretion will be engaged. It will also be engaged if another 
person makes relevant representations to the licensing authority, which are also not frivolous 
or vexatious (see paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10 below). Relevant representations can be made in 
opposition to, or in support of, an application and can be made by any individual, body or 
business that has grounds to do so. 

Page 4



3

9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence on 
the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a representation from a 
local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by competition from new licensed 
premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a businessperson that 
nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the local area, and 
the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, would be 
relevant. In other words, representations should relate to the impact of licensable activities 
carried on from premises on the objectives…..There is no requirement for a responsible 
authority or other person to produce a recorded history of problems at premises to support 
their representations, and in fact this would not be possible for new premises. 

9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a 
representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of what might 
ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation may be considered to 
be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation or annoyance, whether to a 
competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or justification. Vexatious circumstances 
may arise because of disputes between rival businesses and local knowledge will therefore be 
invaluable in considering such matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of 
the representation, and whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably 
be considered to be proportionate. 

9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of seriousness. 
Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most, are minor and in relation to 
which no remedial steps would be warranted or proportionate.”

7.2 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it is 
likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s main source of 
advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. However, any responsible authority under 
the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they 
have evidence to support such representations. Licensing authorities must therefore consider 
all relevant representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where the reason for a 
particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective 
may not be immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible 
authorities to ensure that their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would 
be subject at a hearing. 

7.3 Panel members are requested to consider the evidence and to determine whether or not the 
application should be granted with or without modifications or rejected.

7.4 The panel must have regard to:

1. Its own policy; and
2. Secretary of State Guidance (section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003).

8.    FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  

9.    LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 5



4

9.1 The Licensing Authority are under a statutory duty to facilitate the hearing.  When determining 
this hearing the Council must comply with the rules of natural justice.

Any party at the hearing has a right to appeal the decision to the Magistrates Court.

10.  COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER

10.1 There are financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report.  
  
9.  COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

Please refer to the comments at 9.1.

11.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 HR & Organisational 
Development 

 ICT / Technology

 Property & Asset 
Management

 Risk 

 Equality & Diversity 

None

None

None

Please refer to the legal risks identified above.

None

12. APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 Application and Plan- Marked as Application
 
Appendix A - C. Representations from Responsible Authorities

Appendix D - O .Representations from interested parties

Appendix P - T Photos of the premises 

Appendix U Response to objections from the applicant

Report Author: Telephone: Date:

Chris Ward 01772 
625401

29th November 2018

Page 6



Appendix 1

Page 7



Appendix 1

Page 8



Appendix 1

Page 9



Appendix 1

Page 10



Appendix 1

Page 11



Appendix 1

Page 12



Appendix 1

Page 13



Appendix 1

Page 14



Appendix 1

Page 15



Appendix 1

Page 16



Appendix 1

Page 17



Appendix 1

Page 18



Appendix 1

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Appendix A

Page 22



Page 23



Appendix B

Page 24



Appendix B

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27



Appendix C

Page 28



Page 29



Appendix D

Page 30



Appendix D

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



Appendix E

Page 34



Page 35



Appendix F

Page 36



Appendix F

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



Appendix L

Page 50



Appendix L

Page 51



Appendix L

Page 52



Appendix L

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Marshall, Mark 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

John Bolton  
22 November 2018 11:42 
Licensing 
Indigo, la Fleetwood Street, Leyland PR125 3NL 

APPENDIX M. 

I write further to your notice that you have received an application for the grant of a Premises license/ Club 
Premises Certificate from Daniel Hindle, together with proposed activities and timetable for the above address. 
I would like to lodge my objection to this application on the following grounds. 

Location: The club is located less than 10 metres away from residential properties on Fleetwood Street. It is 
unreasonable to allow the playing of music ,either live or recorded beyond 12.00 ,as with the previous club, Knights 
of St .. Columbus.In some cases it is proposed to play music until 02.15 which is totally unacceptable due to the 
club's very close proximity to the street residents. 

Noise pollution: Fleetwood Street has a diverse selection of people in terms of employment. Some work early 
morning shifts and others, like myself are required to work at weekends.There is also a young mother with two very 
young children who lives directly opposite the club. It is unreasonable to subject the residents to this noise pollution 
until the music has finished and all the customers have left the area, which at weekends is likely to be after 3.00 a.m 
.Therefore, if there is no provision to adequately sound proof the premises or arrangements are ncit in place for taxi 
collection away from the street ther:, this proposal should not be considered. 

Anti -Social Behaviour: The new club will inevitably attract the younger element of Leyland _and surrounding areas, 
unlike· its predecessor, the KC club.This may bring the threat of an increase in anti -social behaviour to the area. Due 
to the large number of late night takeaways, the area already has its fair share of problems. This will particularly be a 
threat at closing time and may put extra pressure on an already over stretched and under resourced Police force. 

· Provision for Smokers: It is understood that the back outdoor area of the club will not be used. Whilst this is
considerate it may lead to large numbers of smokers congregating outside the club on the street thus adding to the
noise and litter.

John Bolton 
7 Fleetwood Street 
Sent from my iPad 

1 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Office,

South Ribble Borough Council,

West Paddock,

Leyland

3/12/18


Ref Indigo, 1 Fleewood St, Leyland PR25 3NL


Dear Sirs,

Given the level of objection and the benefit of hindsight I would like to make the following 
comments.


1. We will be happy with a midnight licence on Friday and Saturday and 11pm the rest of the 
week


2. We will not be having live bands performing with the possible exception of acoustic music 
early Sunday evenings, there will also be no karaoke


I would also like to address the issues raised by the various authorities


Licensing


1. We will be getting an acoustic test done, but regardless of this the recorded music will be set 
at a level which is acceptable to the residents and it will never exceed this


2. No windows or doors will ever be left open, we have blocked off 3 windows to the side and 
installed a brand new air conditioning system, meaning no windows ever need to be opened. 
The door to the top of the fire escape will never be opened either as there is no access to the 
yard for customers.


3. There will be no chairs or tables externally, no external speakers, no artificial lighting and no 
heaters.


4. There will be no deliveries after 7pm and glass will only be disposed of during daytime hours

5. With regards to children on the premises this will only happen when families come out to 

watch the football and they will have to be accompanied by and adult.

6. With regards to taxis, although I cannot physically stop them entering Fleetwood St we will be 

in touch with all local firms to instruct them that any drop offs or collections must be done on 
Chapel Brow.


7. With regard to capacity, I can agree with licensing that 150 is probably too many and would be 
happy with a capacity of 120


Police


1. I note the police comment about dancing, we are having a DJ but there is no section on the 
application for dancing apart from “performance of dance” which I presume is not dancing.


2. 2 door staff will be employed on Friday and Saturday nights from 9pm to 12.30am or until the 
bar is cleared and the street empty. There will also be a barrier system in place those nights to 
direct people towards Chapel Brow and discourage them from going down Fleetwood St


3. Our smoking area will be located towards the end of Fleetwood St where it meets Chapel 
Brow and a smoking bin will be provided at this point. Door staff will prevent anyone taking a 
drink outside on nights they are working at other times there will be a sign asking customers 
not to take drinks outside, cameras will monitor the area and all staff will be instructed to be 
vigilant.


Residents Concerns


I can only say that from the residents complaints about the previous operators I have genuine 
sympathy for their plight, however we are new operators and will take every measure possible to 
ensure the situation is much improved and will liaise with a nominated resident to resolve any 
issues, this is my business and I am directly responsible not a faceless committee.

Out target demographic is primarily 25-45 years of age and we are not a cheap drinking 
establishment, we are creating a nice bar for decent people to socialise in.

In response to individual concerns I would like to add the following


Appendix U

Page 71



1. Our cleaner will be instructed to clean the street outside our premises as soon as she arrives 
at 7am


2. During the week I will personally be on site to ensure customers vacate the street immediately

3. With regard to parking there is not much I can do as there are no restrictions on the street, 

however I will say I’m quite surprised that the street is not residents only parking as this would 
alleviate a lot of their problems.


4. When deliveries are due we will do our best to cone off the delivery area to make sure they 
don’t block the road and will strive to make the delivery as quick as possible.


5. I have no other businesses licensed or otherwise, this will be my only source of income and is 
extremely important to me.


6. Fast food owners parking on the street, again this is out of my control but residents parking 
would stop this


7. Racial Hatred! Not quite sure how to respond to this but I would like to think we will attract a 
more urbane crowd and not knuckle dragging neanderthals.


I think the responses to the authorities address all the other issues, I can only stress that this will 
be a responsibly operated business and we want to exist side by side with the residents with as 
little disruption as possible to their daily lives.


Regards


Daniel Hindle

Appendix U

Page 72


	Agenda
	3 Declaration of New Premises Licence Application
	Appendix 1 Application form
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H
	Appendix I
	Appendix J
	Appendix K
	Appendix L
	Appendix M
	Appendix N
	Appendix O
	Appendix P
	Application Q
	Appendix R
	Appendix S
	Appendix T
	Appendix U


